Public Document Pack po b
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  o° :

Bridgend County Borough Council

—
Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont, CF31 4WB / Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB BRIDGEND

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief

Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich Executive’s Directorate
dewis iaith. Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 /
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 643147 / 643694
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. Gofynnwch am / Ask for: Democratic Services

Ein cyf/ Our ref:
Eich cyf / Your ref:

Dyddiad/Date: Wednesday, 19 July 2023

Dear Councillor,

EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3

An Extraordinary Meeting of Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 will be held Hybrid in the
Council Chamber - Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB / remotely via Microsoft Teams
on Tuesday, 25 July 2023 at 16:00.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from Members.

2. Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations of personal and prejudicial interest (if any) from Members/Officers in
accordance with the provisions of the Members Code of Conduct adopted by Council from 1
September 2008 (including whipping declarations)

3. Update on Communities Directorate Position and Challenges 3-14
Invitees

Councillor Huw David — Leader of Council

Councillor Jane Gebbie - Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet Member for Social Services
and Health

Councillor Hywel Williams - Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources and Legal

Councillor John Spanswick — Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Environment
Councillor Jon-Paul Blundell - Cabinet Member for Education

Councillor Neelo Farr - Cabinet Member for Community Safety and Wellbeing

Councillor Rhys Goode - Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning and Regeneration

Mark Shephard - Chief Executive
Carys Lord - Chief Officer Finance, Performance and Change
Janine Nightingale - Corporate Director, Communities

4, Conclusions and Recommendations

5. Forward Work Programme Update 15-28

By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you will save the Authority approx. £00.00 in
printing costs



6. Urgent Iltems
To consider any item(s) of business in respect of which notice has been given in
accordance with Part 4 (paragraph 4) of the Council Procedure Rules and which the person
presiding at the meeting is of the opinion should by reason of special circumstances be
transacted at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

Note: This will be a Hybrid meeting and Members and Officers will be attending in the Council
Chamber, Civic Offices, Angel Street Bridgend / Remotely via Microsoft Teams. The meeting will be
recorded for subsequent transmission via the Council’s internet site which will be available as soon
as practicable after the meeting. If you have any queries regarding this, please contact
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk or tel. 01656 643148 / 643694 / 643513 / .643696

Yours faithfully
K Watson
Chief Officer, Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy

Councillors: Councillors Councillors
S J Bletsoe M J Evans J E Pratt
N Clarke P W Jenkins G Walter
C Davies MJ Kearn | Williams

P Davies W J Kendall MJ Williams



Agenda Iltem 3

Meeting of: EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3

Date of Meeting: 251 July 2023

Report Title: UPDATE ON COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE POSITION &
CHALLENGES

Report Owner / CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES

Corporate Director:

Responsible
Officer: Janine Nightingale
CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES

Policy Framework There is no effect upon the Council’s policy framework or

and Procedure procedure rules as a result of this report.

Rules:

Executive The report reviews the challenges faced by the
Summary: Communities Directorate.

This Includes setting out the consequences of the £11.744m
of savings taken from the Communities budget over 10
years of austerity, the reduction in staff teams and the

vacancy issue that is affecting the rate of delivery of key
statutory services.

It sets out the work & performance of the directorate over
the past 12 months and recommends that a new 5-year
Target Operating Model be developed to align service
provision with existing budgets and resources.

This is recognised within the financial context and
challenges of the Council in the years ahead.

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to update the extraordinary meeting of the Subject
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 on the current position with the Communities
Directorate in terms of budget and resources and comment on how this will affect
future performance. Also, to provide a considered narrative of how the situation could
be improved.

Page 3



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Background

The Communities Directorate brings together a wide range of services, some of which
are statutory and many of which are highly visible to members of the public. These
include waste collection & disposal, cleaner streets, highways and green spaces such
as parks, and cemeteries, coastline and beaches, planning and development,
strategic regeneration including major capital projects, economic development, the
Bridgend employability services and the natural environment. This includes nature
reserves and biodiversity and importantly the council’s strategic commitment to the
2030 Net Zero Carbon Agenda. The Directorate is also responsible for the council’s
estate via the Corporate Landlord Section. We are committed to working in
partnership with our citizens, our communities and with other partner and third sector
organisations to listen and then to develop and deliver more responsive and
sustainable services.

A Corporate Director leads the Community Directorate with one Head of Service, with
the title Head of Operations — Communities Services. There are five Group Managers
and one Service Manager. There are currently 586 staff employed in the Directorate,
which equates to only 9% of the Council’s overall resources. This is shown in the
figure 1 below. The organisational structure of the Directorate and the principal areas
of activity for which it is responsible is shown in figure 2 overleatf.

Figure 1 - staff resources in the Council

Our people

The Council is a large organisation .
employing around 6,000 people.
People in our four directorates provide

services to support communities
through all stages of life.

For this, we rely on our people, from
engineers to teachers to care workers.

Communities 568
Social Services and Wellbeing 1,133 Chief Executives 441
Schools 3,058 Education and Family Support 127

The position that the Communities Directorate finds itself in in 2023, is very
challenging. Not only in terms of budget pressures but in terms of staff resources,
local community and political expectations and an increase in statutory work
demands and pressures. Including, for example the Welsh Government mandated
implementation of the 20mph speed restrictions and the 2030 Net Zero Carbon Public
Sector Agenda.

This is not to say that the position is more acute in Communities than other
Directorates in the Council, as there is a recognition of the challenges that exist in

Page 4



other areas across the Council, such as Social Care. The Communities Directorate
position, however, is set against a backdrop of 10 years of Austerity, where £11.744m
has been removed from the Directorate budget in savings. This equates to a circa
38% reduction in real terms, with the budget in 23/24 standing at £31m. In 23/24 this
£31m equates to only 9% of the Council’s overall net Budget. Nearly half of the
Council’s budget is spent on our schools and education services and another quarter
is spent on social services and wellbeing. The breakdown of the Council’s budget is
shown in figure 3 below.

2.5 The Communities Directorate has received some elements of budget growth

pressures during the 10-year period, 2014 to 2023. This totals £7.8m, however this
does include a £2m allocation for a corporate Public Realm Fund, £1.741m for waste
services pressures which includes an increase in tonnage of waste collected, 592K
to cover the reduction in waste grant and an allocation of 692k in 2017/18 for a
revenue contribution to the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCR).

Figure 2 — Structure Chart of the Communities Directorate with responsibilities

Head of Operations

Community Services

M
SR (ELE Cleaner Streets & Waste .Group anager
Economy, Natural Highways & Green
L Contracts Manager
Resources & Sustainability Spaces

Group Manager Group Manager

Group Manager

Corporate Landlord

Planning & Development Strategic Regeneration

Development Planning,

Including LDP & Strategic
Transport Planning

Development & Building
Control

Placemaking

Regeneration, including
Town Centres

City Deal CCR

Strategic Targeted
Regeneration Sites
Investment Programme

Regional Engagement
Team (RET)

Conservation & Design

Economic Development
Employability

Rural Development
Tourism

Marina & Coastal
Services

Countryside
Sustainable Development
2030 Agenda

Valleys Regional Park
Programme

Figure 3 — Breakdown of Council Net Budget

Page 5

Waste Services Contract
Waste Policy & Education
Street Cleansing

Enforcement

Engineering

Green Space &
Bereavement

Highway Direct Services
Highways Network
Rights of Way

Traffic Management &
Parking

Fleet Management

Lead Flood Authority

Total Facilities
Management

Strategic Asset
Management &
investment

Major Projects

Community Asset
Transfer




Nearly half of your Council’'s budget is spent on our schools
and another quarter is spent on social services and wellbeing.

You can see the detail in the chart.

Schools

Social Services and Wellbeing

Council Wide Budgets

Communities

Education and Family Support 8% £28m
Chief Executives

2.5 The decision to reduce the Communities Budget was made by the Council over
successive years, largely to protect core statutory services in Social Services and
Education. Consequently, this has had a very marked, cumulative impact on the
service delivery and resource profile in Communities. The 10-year profile of the
£11.744m Budget Savings from the Communities Directorate, provided by the
Finance Department, is shown below in figure 4 below.

Figure 4 - Community Budget savings over 10 years (shown in Millions)

14/15 | 15/16 | 16/17 | 17/18 | 18/19 | 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | TOTAL

1.728 2.488 1.336 806K 1.454 1.938 646K 823K 150K 375K 11.74
m m m m m 4m

2.6 Whilst during the first few years of austerity the savings made to the Communities
budget may not have been immediately noticeable, the cumulative effect from 2018
onwards has had a very marked impact on the delivery of statutory and essential
frontline community services. The most significant savings achieved were £1.188m
on the Directorate staffing structure, which saw the removal of a Head of Service and
Group Manager post, the reduction of Business Admin support to the Directorate and
the reduction in size of teams. At the same time the Corporate Director Communities
accepted the post of interim Chief Executive, until his later appointment to that post
in 2019. These staff changes removed layers of senior management and
administrative capacity in the Directorate, which effected both performance and the
speed of decision making. Some teams have since operated with a circa 50%
reduction in staff but not with the corresponding realignment of responsibilities or
expectations. Examples of reductions in team size include: -

Page 6



2.7

2.8

2.9

e The Street Cleansing Team reduced from 85 to 42 posts (51%)

e Traffic & Transportation reduced from 11 to 6 posts (46%)

e Tourism Team over successive years from 22 to 1 post (95%)

e Green Space & Bereavement (winter position) from 87 to 46 posts (48%)

Other areas that are difficult to manage are the public expectations versus the
reductions in service provision, as a direct consequence of these budget savings.
Some of the most reported items by the public are weed control and grass cutting
across the Borough, with dissatisfaction expressed on both. The reduction of these
budgets has undoubtably had a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the
Borough. The grass cutting regime was reduced from 8 cuts a year to 5 to make the
relevant savings, however the public perception is not of a budget reduction but that
the service provided is poor. This will be incredibly difficult to reconcile when the
Council and Directorate have significantly reduced budgets overall and are effectively
balancing competing statutory and financial priorities, some that could ultimately save
lives. For example, the provision in social care and ensuring our highways network
is safe and efficient. In a challenging budget position, these will unfortunately always
have to take precedence over other amenity services.

This diminishing budget situation is quite starkly represented by a graphic that was
recently included in the new corporate plan. This sets out the Council spends per
household, per day on its services. From figure 5 below services such as Schools
and Adult Social care cost £4.82 and £2.77 respectively per day. While the Council
daily spend on waste collection and street cleansing is 43p and 7p per household,
per day and the spend on Highways is 35p and Parks and Playing Fields 10p. This
illustrates the exceedingly difficult budget challenges faced by the Council and the
scale of the reductions in funding that have been subsequently awarded to the
Communities Directorate to deliver front line services.

Figure 5 — Council spend on services, per household per day in 2023/24

‘What your Council spends on services (per household, per day)

£2.77 £4.82 £1.06 3p 43p

Adult Social Schools Children’s Social Early Years and Waste
Care Care Childcare Collection and
Disposal

T < & = g

4p 35p 18p 25p 10p
Street Lighting Highways Housing and Sports, Planning,
Homelessness Recrea tion Development
and Cultural and
Services Regenera tion
/\/ © N |
'e‘-el:-).. @
—— =
70p p 10p p

Council Tax Street Cleaning Parks and Climate
Reduction Playing Fields Response and
Scheme - Environmen tal

Before moving onto the impact that the budget is having on the performance on the
Communities Directorate, it also imperative that the current staff vacancy picture is

Page 7



2.10

3.1

3.2

established. In addition, to having very lean teams and reduced budgets within the
service area, there is also unfortunately a significant problem with vacancies, which
is compounding the resource picture.

The Directorate currently has 61 vacancies in professional services posts. This
equates in real terms to nearly 40% of professionally qualified posts. Some vacancies
have existed for more than 12 months and are increasingly difficult to fill, as the
market situation and salary gap is widening between the public and private sectors.
This has inevitably resulted in delays as work has to be prioritised, sometimes on a
daily basis. All vacant posts have been advertised regularly on the Council’s website,
through social media channels, and in specialist journals, such as “The Planner”
magazine and press such the Guardian. Inevitable where the post cannot be filled
some vacancies have to be filled using specialist agency staff to backfill priority
positions, including in planning, highways, and for structural engineers. We have
been collaborating with colleagues in HR to look at more innovative ways to recruit.
This includes in some areas removing Chartered Status as a barrier to recruitment
and assisting staff to gain this in post. However, some vacant posts are senior and
require specialist qualifications, so it is not always possible to bring less qualified staff
forward for the roles. Examples of some of the 61 posts currently vacant include: -

* Principal Structural Engineer & Senior Structural Engineer
* Senior Drainage Engineer & Drainage Engineer

* Highways Engineers x 2 posts

 Building Control Team Leader (vacant 2 yrs)

* Highway Development Control Officer (vacant 3 yrs)

* Strategic Asset Manager & Surveyors x 6 posts

* Principal Strategic Transport Officer & Transport Officer

Current situation / proposal

The previous section of this report has set out the budget and resource challenges of
the Directorate, what is important to now understand is how these impact on
performance and service delivery. This is because it is widely acknowledged that the
perception of the performance of the Directorate, from both the public and local
politicians, is that it is poor in some areas. This is a cause of real frustration amongst
officers, who are managing really challenging portfolios, delivering some valuable
services and projects, whilst prioritising work on a daily basis. It is not a situation that
any member of staff in the Directorate wants to be in.

There is no doubt that the reduced levels of staff and service level budgets,
compounded by unprecedented vacancies have caused some areas of the service
to be less responsive in their business as usual [ BAU] activities than they would like
to be. Also, inevitably some projects have had delayed starts and now have to be
undertaken on a prioritised forward work programme basis. This process is managed
via the Directorate Management Team (DMT), who meet weekly to look at resource’s
profiles and prioritisation.

Page 8



3.3

3.4

3.5

It is felt that one of the areas most criticised is that of Members Referrals. This has
been the subject of many discussions with members for the past year. It will not add
value to rehearse the concerns in detail in this report. There are however actions
being undertaken to improve the functionality of the platform, increase the amount of
information available for self-service and to add a small resource to the Directorate
to manage the system. Currently, the Communities Directorate has no specific
business support for referrals and is reliant on the small pool of professional officers,
still in post, to set aside their BAU activities to answer referrals. Whilst we recognise
that referrals are an important part of a role as an elected member, our current staffing
level, does unfortunately mean that sometimes responding does inevitably then delay
service delivery. Itis felt that the situation is improving, and we hope to continue this
with some additional resource in the coming months.

Whilst the major projects of the Directorate are fairly well known, we are successfully
currently delivering over £68m of primarily grant funded capital schemes (shown as
figure 6 overleaf). What is less visible however, is the significant amount of Corporate
Reporting that is undertaken by the officers within the Communities Directorate. The
detail of this over the past 12 months is set out below. These are an important part of
the Business as Usual (BAU) work of the Directorate, but it does take significant
resource and time every month to complete. In the last twelve months alone, the
Directorate has delivered the following mentioned corporate reporting below, with a
key number of strategies including most significantly the Replacement Local
Development Plan. This was the culmination of three years’ work and the first LDP in
Wales to come forward to Welsh Government since the pandemic. So, despite the
financial and resource pressures this has been achieved.

e 36 Cabinet Reports — including the Bridgend 2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy,
Biodiversity Duty & Action Plan, Porthcawl Placemaking Strategy and the £3.5m
Grant CCR Award for the Ewenny Road Redevelopment Site in Maesteg.

e 5 Council Reports and 19 responses to Council Questions — including the
Economic Development Strategy and the Replacement Local Development Plan

e 15 Scrutiny Committees, including COSC and CPA

e 3 Scrutiny Call In’s — Including the Waste Strategy, Porthcawl Appropriation and
the Bridgend 2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy

e 9 Development Control Committee — to determine planning applications

e 3 All member Briefings — The Members Portal, Active Travel & the Welsh
Government 20mph speed limit implementation

As indicated above the Directorate’s performance is also regularly scrutinised by this
Committee SOC3, the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee and by quarterly
Corporate Performance Assessments. Over the last twelve months the numbers of
Key Performance Indicators that are showing as red are very low for Communities,
with the majority being amber or green. In addition, the revenue budget has also been
well managed, with the Directorate reporting a close to balanced year end position
for the past three years. This has been very challenging, particularly when there is
such a demand for services, but it is clear that the number of vacancies throughout

the Directorate is assisting financially in this regard.
Figure 5 - Circa £68m (majority grant funded) Major Projects being delivered by Communities Directorate

Page 9



3.6

3.7

3.8

* £8m Maesteg Town Hall

* £3m Cosy Corner Redevelopment

* £3m Metro Link Project

* £18m Grand Pavilion Project

* £23m Shared Prosperity Fund Projects

* £3m Children’s Playground Refurbishment

* £1.1m Local Places for Nature Fund

* £1m Communities for Work Fund

* £1.5m Additional Active Travel Routes

* £1.3m Urban Enhancement Property Fund

* £5m School Maintenance Grants

* WG 20mph Speed Restrictions across Borough
* Interim Waste Contract 2024/26

* Bridgend College Redevelopment (enabling works)
* Energy Projects including BDHN and Hybont

* Designing two major Primary Schools

WAY FORWARD FOR THE DIRECTORATE

It is very clear from both the existing Council budget position and the Medium-Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) that the financial position of the Communities Directorate
is unlikely to improve in view of projected difficult settlements nationally and
significant demands on other services. In fact, based on current projections, it is likely
that the Directorate will have to make additional budget savings in the years ahead.
Between 2020/21 and 2022/23 the savings required by the Communities ODirectorate
has been 33% of the overall Council’s savings target, despite only having 9% of the
Council’'s budget overall. The reasons for this were set out earlier because the
Council has had to make very difficult decisions to protect other services, including
Education and Social Services Budgets.

This challenging financial situation, combined with very lean BAU staff teams, high
vacancy rates and difficult to fill posts, with the added complexity of statutory
responsibilities, large major projects, and the inevitable expectations of both the local
communities and politicians, has meant the Directorate now has to look in detail at
its Target Operating Model (TOM), over a five-year period to align with the MTFS
planning. This is because the current situation is not sustainable. It is exerting undue
pressure on staff and means that the Directorate cannot properly fulfii on a
sustainable basis all its statutory obligations (shown in table 6 overleaf) without
unavoidable delays, due to the need for work to be prioritised. This inevitably causes
frustration to local communities and elected members and staff alike, and a key part
of looking at the five-year TOM must be the management of expectations going
forward. Communicating the consequences of reduced budgets and prioritisation of
key services must be effective to ensure that our communities understand fully the
situation, even if they express unhappiness with the outcome.

Therefore, a key part of this is likely to have to be more effective ongoing,
communication and engagement with our local residents to gain a better mutual
understanding, help shape and inform priorities and agree the role everyone can play

Page 10



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

in helping to deliver some services. The Council is not able to deliver all services for
everyone, or indeed many of the services to the same level that it has done
historically, something that is very clearly set out in our newly approved Corporate
Plan. So increasingly an important role will be helping to assist and facilitate
communities to be able to provide some of the solutions to this challenge, while
unless overall resourcing increases substantially, it is inevitable that our focus will
have to be on delivering fewer services, but delivering them well, and these are likely
to be the main statutory ones where realistically only the Council can effectively
provide that service.

To develop an effective TOM moving forward it is recommended, that this work is
focused on what services the Directorate can deliver efficiently and effectively,
aligned and within the reduced resource and budget allocations. This must take into
account its wide range of statutory responsibilities but also critical functions like
strategic regeneration and economic development, which bring millions of pounds of
grant funded capital allocations into the Authority annually. For every £1 spent in
these functions £9 is returned and these grants in the main fund the majority of the
major projects set out in figure 5 above.

This work should not be focused on delivering further efficiency savings, although this
might be a byproduct but to ensure that the future service provision is financially
sustainable and customer centric. A key part of this will be to ensure that the
Directorate continues to collaborate with local communities and key stakeholders and
that it maximises its partnership working with other Local Authorities, the Cardiff
Capital Region, Welsh Government, and public sector bodies such as the Local
Health Board.

It must be recognised, that a new 5-year TOM will not be the panacea for all the
financial challenges faced within the Local Authority or the Directorate. There will
inevitably need to be prioritisation of projects, however it will provide an opportunity
to look at service provision and identify those services that bring the most value to
the Community and which assist in delivering our Corporate Plan Aims and 7 Well
Being Objectives.

This will be alongside the existing work that is ongoing with finance to manage
existing budgets and priorities, vacancy management, reviewing the wellbeing plans
of the Directorate and improving information available to members and the public to
encourage self-service.

Figure 6 - Statutory Responsibilities held with the Communities Directorate

Page 11



4.1

5.1

* Local Highway Authority — To ensure a safe & efficient highway network

* Waste Collection Authority — collected, treated, disposed & recycled

* Flood Authority — flood prevention, monitoring & response

* Cemetery Order & Bereavement Duties — cemeteries & crematorium
 Statutory Building Compliance —including Big 5 within Corporate Estate

* Local Planning Authority — Planning Applications and Local Development Plan
* SAB Authority — Sustainable Drainage Approval Body

» Building Regulations & Safety — Building Control Applications & Inspections

* Listed Buildings & Conservation Act — Applications & protection

* Natural Environment & Rural Communities — conserving & improving Biodiversity
* 2030 Net Zero Carbon Public Sector — WG duty on LA’s

* Harbour Authority — Porthcawl Marina & wider environment

* Hazardous Substances Authority — Application approval for HSE & NRW

* Minerals Planning Authority — Local Quarries

Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language)

An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would
be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on
socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. It is therefore not
necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.

Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate
Well-being Objectives

BCBC is committed to promoting sustainable development and to discharge its duties
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. However, it must be
noted that this legislation, which is now heavily embedded into the work of the
Directorate, will make it very difficult to review our TOM. That is, to remove or stop
community or front facing services in a compliant way. A summary relating to the five
ways of working and how they connect to the Corporate Well-being Objectives is
below:

Long-term: The Directorate has developed and created an Economic Development
Strategy and a Replacement Local Development Plan (LDP). These combined with
the Wellbeing Plan for the County Borough, set out a long-term vision for the County
and how it will grow successfully and sustainably.

Prevention: The Communities Directorate has for many years worked closely with
stakeholders and the local business community to support the sustainable growth of
local economy in a wide variety of proactive ways. Also to take proactive action and
support local businesses and local communities.

Integration: The work of the Directorate is closely aligned with the BCBC Corporate
Plan, the Local Development Plan and the Public Service Board’s Well-being Plan
and the Bridgend County Economic Strategy.

Collaboration: The development of our strategies and plans, including the LDP,
Economic Strategy, Biodiversity and Placemaking Strategies have been steered by
collaboration with local communities and will be delivered in partnership with key
stakeholders.

Page 12



6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Involvement: Senior members of local public sectors organisations, community
leaders, business leaders, representatives of business sectors and trade bodies and
other key stakeholders, work regularly with the Communities Directorate in projects
of mutual benefit.

Climate Change Implications

Staff resource within the Directorate are responsible for driving BCBC Climate
Change and Decarbonisation ambitions forward. Any potential reduction in revenue
budgets in future years will impact on the approved delivery plan and our target is
reach Net Zero by 2030 for BCBC operations. There is no impact currently.
Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications

There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report.

Financial Implications

The Communities Directorate operates with a £31m budget allocation in the financial
year 2023/2024.

Since austerity began in 2010 the Council has made almost £73 million of budget
reductions, which represents almost 23% of the Council’s current net budget.
However, the percentage of savings and cuts has not been equal across all Council
services, as decisions have had to made regarding service priorities over that period.

An analysis of the savings requirements in the past 5 years are shown below:

Agreeq Agreed Overalll B
Council . Council Communities’
Communities . )
Revenue Revenue budget ~savings savings
Budget identified
£000 £000 £000 £000

2018/2019 265,984 26,729 6,123 1,454
2019/2020 270,809 25,331 7,621 1,938
2020/2021 286,885 27,790 2,413 646
2021/2022 298,956 28,137 1,760 823
2022/2023 319,514 28,995 631 150

Despite better than anticipated funding settlements from Welsh Government in recent
years, the Council has had to manage exponential increases in demand across many
services. In addition, the Council has sought to keep Council Tax rises low in recent
due to the impact of the pandemic and then the “Cost of Living” crisis on residents in
the Borough.

Recommendation

Page 13




9.1 It is recommended that the Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 notes the
report, the challenges outlined and the recommendations for the future of the
Communities Directorate

Background documents

Bridgend County Borough Council Corporate Plan 2023-28

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 5

Meeting of:

SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3

Date of Meeting:

25 JULY 2023

Report Title:

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE

Report Owner /

Corporate Director:

CHIEF OFFICER - LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR
& CORPORATE POLICY

Responsible
Officer:

MERYL LAWRENCE
SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER — SCRUTINY

Policy Framework
and Procedure
Rules:

The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to
the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that
form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and
consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the
power to promote or improve economic, social or
environmental wellbeing in the County Borough of
Bridgend. Any changes to the structure of the Scrutiny
Committees and the procedures relating to them would
require the Bridgend County Borough Council Constitution
to be updated.

Executive
Summary:

The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview
and Scrutiny Committee to develop and implement a
Forward Work Programme for the Committee.

The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to propose items for the
Forward Work Programme having regard for the Council’s
Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have
oversight and refer any cross-cutting topics to a Committee
or Research and Evaluation Panel.

The Committee is asked to consider and agree its Forward
Work Programme, identify any specific information it
wishes to be included in and any invitees they wish to
attend for the reports for the next two Committee meetings,
identify any further items for consideration on the Forward
Work Programme having regard to the criteria set out in the
report, consider the Recommendations Monitoring Action
Sheet and note that the proposed draft Forward Work
Programmes for the Subject Overview and Scrutiny
Committees will be reported to the next meeting of COSC.

Page 15




11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Purpose of Report
The purpose of this report is to:

a) Present the Committee with the proposed draft outline Forward Work
Programme (Appendix A) for discussion and consideration;

b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend;

c) Request the Committee to identify whether there are presently any further items
for consideration on the Forward Work Programme having regard to the
selection criteria in paragraph 3.6 of this report;

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings;

e) Note that the proposed draft Forward Work Programme, any feedback from the
Committee and the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported
to the next meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC),
with the comments from each respective Subject Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (SOSC), following consideration in this cycle of Committee meetings.

Background

The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
to develop and implement a Forward Work Programme for the Committee.

The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject Overview and Scrutiny
Committee to propose items for the Forward Work Programme having regard for
the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for the
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have oversight and refer any cross-
cutting topics to a Committee or Research and Evaluation Panel.

Best Practice / Guidance

The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises
the importance of the Forward Work Programme. In order to ‘lead and own the
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload
should be coordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken
in a timely and well-planned manner.

Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximize the effective use
of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees. It is not possible to
include every topic proposed. Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.

The CfGS’s guide to effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the
following reference to the importance of good work programming:

Page 16



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done
well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on issues
of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up
wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is likely to
be minimal.’

Current situation / proposal

Draft Outline Forward Work Programmes

Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the
Annual Meeting of Council on 17 May 2023, the standing statutory reports to this
Scrutiny Committee of: the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) and Budget, Performance and Budget Monitoring, etc. have been mapped
to the appropriate timely meeting dates into a draft Forward Work Programme.

The draft outline Forward Work Programme for each Scrutiny Committee have been
prepared using a number of difference sources, including:

Corporate Risk Assessment;

Directorate Business Plans;

Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / minutes;
Committee / Member proposed topics;

Policy Framework;

Cabinet Work Programme,;

Discussions with Corporate Directors;

Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.

There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to
be considered by Scrutiny, e.g., the MTFS including draft budget proposals
scheduled for consideration in December 2023 and January 2024, following which
the Committee will coordinate the conclusions and recommendations from each of
the Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees in a report on the overall strategic
overview of Cabinet’s draft Budget proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February
2024.

An effective Forward Work Programme will identify the issues that the Committee
wishes to focus on during the year and provide a clear plan. However, at each
meeting the Committee will have an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work
Programme Update will be a standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are
scheduled for future meetings and be requested to clarify any information to be
included in reports and the list of invitees. The Forward Work Programme will remain
flexible and will be revisited at each COSC meeting with input from each Subject
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reported and any updated information gathered
from Forward Work Programme meetings with Corporate Directors.

The Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee Draft Forward Work Programmes will
be reported to the next meeting of COSC, with the comments from each respective
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee for coordination and oversight of the
overall Forward Work Programme. The SOSC Forward Work Programmes will be

Page 17



3.6

3.7

included in the standing FWP Update report from then on with any feedback from
each SOSC meeting included.

Identification of Further ltems

The Committee are reminded of the Criteria Form which Members can use to
propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for
prioritisation at a future meeting. The Criteria Form emphasises the need to
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to maximise the impact
scrutiny can have on a topic and the outcomes for people. Criteria which can help
the Committee come to a decision on whether to include a referred topic, are set out
below:

Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics:

PUBLIC INTEREST: The concerns of local people should influence the issues
chosen for scrutiny;

ABILITY TO CHANGE: Priority should be given to issues that the Committee
can realistically influence, and add value to;

PERFORMANCE: Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council
is not performing well;

EXTENT: Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all
or large parts of the County Borough, or a large number
of the Authority’s service users or its population;

REPLICATION: Work programmes must take account of what else is
happening in the areas being considered to avoid
duplication or wasted effort.

Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics:

e The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is
imminent.

¢ The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).

e Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes.

¢ The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial.

¢ The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping.

¢ New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.

e The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone
substantial change / reconfiguration.

Corporate Parenting

Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local
authority towards care experienced children and young people. This is a legal
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a

Page 18



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

4.1

5.1

whole is the ‘Corporate Parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility
for care experienced children and young people in Bridgend.

In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider
affects care experienced children and young people, and in what way can the
Committee assist in these areas.

Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of
the ongoing work of the Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting and particularly
any decisions or changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents.

The draft outline Forward Work Programme for the Committee is attached as
Appendix A for the Committee’s consideration.

The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the
Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings is attached as
Appendix B.

Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language)

The Protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic
Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies,
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.

Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate
Well-being Objectives

The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales,
with 5 Ways of Working to guide how public services should work to deliver for
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 Ways of Working to achieve
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this
report:

e Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and
service delivery.

e Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by
Cabinet.

e Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives.
e Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme

has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service and
Elected Members.

Page 19



5.2

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

¢ Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures
that stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in Committee meetings
and are provided with the opportunity to engage.

When setting its Forward Work Programme, the Committee should consider how
each item they propose to scrutinise assists in the achievement of the Council’s 7
Wellbeing Objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015 as follows :-

A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable

A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns

A County Borough with thriving valleys communities

A County Borough where we help people meet their potential

A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency

A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community
A County Borough where we support people to live healthy and happy lives

NoahswnNE

Climate Change Implications

The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects climate
change, the Council’s Net Zero Carbon 2030 target and how it meets the Council’s
commitments to protect and sustain the environment over the long term. There are
no Climate Change Implications arising from this report.

Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications

The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects care
experienced children and young people, and in what way the Committee can assist
in these areas. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and means protecting peoples’
health, wellbeing and human rights, and enabling them to live free from harm, abuse
and neglect. There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising
from this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Recommendation

The Committee is recommended to:

a) Consider the proposed draft outline Forward Work Programme for the
Committee in Appendix A, make any amendments and agree the Forward
Work Programme.

b) ldentify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend;

Page 20



c) ldentify whether there are presently any further items for consideration on the
Forward Work Programme having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph
3.6 of this report.

d) Consider the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings;

e) Note that the proposed draft Forward Work Programme, any feedback from the
Committee and the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported
to the next meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC),

with the comments from each respective Subject Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (SOSC), following consideration in this cycle of Committee meetings.

Background documents

None.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Draft Outline Forward Work Programme

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3

Monday 19 June 2023 at 4.00pm

Report Topic

Information Required / Committee’s
Role

Invitees

Update on the Shared
Prosperity Fund

Corporate Parenting
Champion Nomination
Report

Draft FWP

Cabinet Members

Cabinet Member for Climate Change and
Environment

Cabinet Member for Community Safety and
Wellbeing

Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning and
Regeneration

Officers

Corporate Director — Communities

Head of Operations — Community Services
Group Manger — Economy, Natural
Resources and Sustainability

External

Tuesday 25 July 2023 at 4.00pm

Report Topics

Information Required / Committee’s
Role

Invitees

Update on Communities
Directorate Position and
Challenges

Extraordinary meeting

Reviewing the challenges faced by the
Communities Directorate.

Cabinet Members

Leader

Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet
Member of Social Services and Health
Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources
and Legal

Cabinet Member for Climate Change and
Environment

Cabinet Member for Education

Cabinet Member for Community Safety and
Wellbeing

Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning and
Regeneration

Officers

Chief Executive

Chief Officer Finance, Performance and
Change

Corporate Director, Communities

External - NA

Page 23




APPENDIX A

Monday 25 September 2023 at 4.00pm

Report Topics

Information Required / Committee’s
Role

Invitees

Update on the Heat Network

Cabinet Members

Officers

External

Monday 27 November at 4.00pm

Report Topics

Information Required / Committee’s
Role

Invitees

Emerging Valleys
Regeneration Strategy

Future Waste Services Work
Stream

Cabinet Members

Officers

External

Monday 22 January 2024 at 4.00pm

Report Topics

Information Required / Committee’s
Role

Invitees

Draft Medium Term Financial
Strategy 2024-25 to 2027-28
and Budget Proposals

Cabinet Members

Leader

Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet
Member of Social Services and Health
Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources
and Legal

Cabinet Member for Climate Change and
Environment

Cabinet Member for Community Safety and
Wellbeing

Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning and
Regeneration

Officers

Chief Executive

Chief Officer Finance, Performance and
Change

Corporate Director Communities

External

Page 24




APPENDIX A

Monday 26 February 2024 at 4.00pm

Report Topics Information Required / Committee’s Invitees
Role

Cabinet Members

Levelling Up Fund — Officers
Porthcawl! Pavilion
External

Monday 22 April 2024 at 4.00pm

Report Topics Information Required / Committee’s Invitees
Role

Cabinet Members

Bridgend 2030 Net Zero Officers
Carbon Strategy
External

Strategic Plan

Members briefing session
e Infrastructure Delivery that has an area specifically on the deterioration of the
road surfaces and potholes — Looking to schedule in the Autumn.

Information reports to be provided
e Electric charging points, where this is currently within the three phases and
what happens after phase three is completed.

Potential Items
e Homelessness Strategy (TBC - timeline being reviewed)

e Housing
- Affordable
- Accessible
- Social
- Energy efficiency housing
¢ Information and update on where the Directorate are
with Asset and Community Asset Transfer (CAT)
e Asset Management Audit Wales inspection report
e Local Biodiversity Action Plan

e Green Spaces

Page 25




APPENDIX A

e Porthcawl Regeneration Update

e Transforming Towns
- Masterplans (Bridgend Town Centre — other masterplans)
- Tourism (attracting tourism including capacity for mobile accommodation)
- Transport Plan Porthcawl
- Maesteg Town Centre

e Net Zero Carbon
- Council Electric Vehicles
- Air Quality Action Plan
- Flood Mitigation

e Corporate Joint Committees Regional Responsibilities

e Play areas / opportunities

Page 26



/¢ abed

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET

APPENDIX B

Date of | Agenda ltem Action Responsibility Outcome
Meeting
19 June | Update on Cabinet Members | Information request circulated
2023 Shared While the Committee acknowledged that starting a | / Corporate requesting response —to be
Prosperity scheme or project before written confirmation of Director of provided.
Fund any Government Grant Funding carried some risk, | Communities
Members reflected on whether the process
undertaken by Cabinet and Officers had taken into
consideration the risk of the UK Government not
permitting the rolling of year 1 funding into year 2.
Members therefore recommended that Cabinet
consider whether, on balance, starting the process
of these projects before funding was received was
a justified risk moving forward and also provide
reassurance as to how they could ensure it will be
considered in future decisions, as the Authority
would not want to receive any less than the 8.3%
announced by the United Kingdom (UK)
Government.
Chief Officer - Information request circulated
19 June | Update on Finance, requesting response — to be
2023 Shared The Committee furthermore recommend that a Performance & provided.
Prosperity way of providing short term interim funding Change /
Fund (including potentially reserves) for projects that Corporate
have a high degree of certainty of Grant Funding Director of

be explored and consideration be given to

Communities




g¢ abed

APPENDIX B

Date of | Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome
Meeting
mechanisms for managing risk and allowing
projects to commence where Grant Funding had
been agreed in principle, but not yet formalised.
Corporate Information request circulated
19 June | Update on That Members be informed of the outcome, as Director of requesting response — to be
2023 Shared soon as possible, of whether or not the request Communities provided.
Prosperity made by a number of Authorities to roll over year 1
Fund funding into year 2 had been granted.
Corporate Information request circulated
19 June | Update on Director of requesting response — to be
2023 Shared Information that the Director of Communities Communities provided.
Prosperity offered regarding engagement with community
Fund groups to establish the level of demand for

Bridgend Local Investment Grant Funding and
assistance required. This was in response to
Members’ concerns regarding responsibilities and
reliance on volunteers and organisations to deliver
the projects and Officers’ explanations that part of
the UKSPF was to build resilience and economic
development, targeting communities that may not
normally have access to that type of funding.




	Agenda
	3 Update on Communities Directorate Position and Challenges
	5 Forward Work Programme Update
	5a. Appendix A - Draft Outline FWP - SOSC 3
	5b. Appendix B - Action Sheet SOSC 3


